CHARTER FOR THE CITY AND COUNTY OF SAN FRANCISCO, PREPARED AND PROPOSED BY THE BOARD OF FREEHOLDERS, ELECTED NOVEMBER 6, 1894, IN PURSUANCE OF THE PROVISIONS OF SECTION 8, ARTICLE XI, OF THE CONSTITUTION OF THE STATE OF CALIFORNIA Published @ 2017 Trieste Publishing Pty Ltd

#### ISBN 9780649425839

Charter for the City and County of San Francisco, Prepared and Proposed by the Board of Freeholders, Elected November 6, 1894, in Pursuance of the Provisions of Section 8, Article XI, of the Constitution of the State of California by Joseph Britton

Except for use in any review, the reproduction or utilisation of this work in whole or in part in any form by any electronic, mechanical or other means, now known or hereafter invented, including xerography, photocopying and recording, or in any information storage or retrieval system, is forbidden without the permission of the publisher, Trieste Publishing Pty Ltd, PO Box 1576 Collingwood, Victoria 3066 Australia.

All rights reserved.

Edited by Trieste Publishing Pty Ltd. Cover @ 2017

This book is sold subject to the condition that it shall not, by way of trade or otherwise, be lent, re-sold, hired out, or otherwise circulated without the publisher's prior consent in any form or binding or cover other than that in which it is published and without a similar condition including this condition being imposed on the subsequent purchaser.

www.triestepublishing.com

## **JOSEPH BRITTON**

CHARTER FOR THE CITY AND COUNTY OF SAN FRANCISCO, PREPARED AND PROPOSED BY THE BOARD OF FREEHOLDERS, ELECTED NOVEMBER 6, 1894, IN PURSUANCE OF THE PROVISIONS OF SECTION 8, ARTICLE XI, OF THE CONSTITUTION OF THE STATE OF CALIFORNIA



# BOARD OF FREEHOLDERS.

### PRESIDENT: JOSEPH BRITTON.

JEROME A. ANDERSON, P. H. McCARTHY, H. N. CLEMENT, A. COMTE, Jr., ALFRED CRIDGE, L. R. ELLERT, ISIDOR GUTTE,

JAMES BUTLER, JOHN NIGHTINGALE, JR., JOHN C. NOBMANN, JOSEPH O'CONNOR, LIPPMANN SACHS; EDWARD R. TAYLOR, A. W. THOMPSON.

Secretary,

J. RICH'D FREUD.

Assistant Secretary, MISS CLARA STOCKTON.

### COMMITTEES.

- Boundary, Rights and Liabilities
   Nobmann, Thompson and McCarthy.
- The Legislative Department Ellert, Anderson, Taylor and Cridge.
- Finance. Revenue and Taxation Sachs, Ellert and Comte.
- The Executive Department Comte, Ellert and Nightingale.
- The Judicial Department Clement, Comte and Taylor.
- Department of Public Works
   Taylor, Ellert and Gutte.
- Public Schools and Libraries
   O'Connor, Nightingale, McCarthy and Comte.
- Police and Correction Britton, Sachs, Nobmann and Butler.
- The Fire Department Gutte, Clement and McCarthy.
- The Health Department
   Anderson, Nightingale and Taylor.
- Department of Elections
   Butler, Nobmann and Thompson.
- 12. Public Utilities
  Cridge, Anderson and Britton.
- 13. Civil Service and Salaries

  McCarthy, Clement and Gutte.
- Miscellaneous and Schedule.
   Nightingale, Taylor and Comte.
- Revision.
   Thompson, Taylor, O'Connor, Cridge and Anderson.

### CONTENTS.

e e	AGE.
ARTICLE I-BOUNDARIES, RIGHTS AND LIABILITIES	3
ARTICLE II-LEGISLATIVE DEPARTMENT,	
CHAPTER I-The Board of Supervisors	4
II-Powers of the Supervisors	9
III—Contracts	17
ARTICLE III-FINANCE AND TAXATION.	
CHAPTER I—Levying of Taxes	21
II—The Several Funds	25
III-The Custody of Public Moneys	27
IV-Payment of Claims	31
ARTICLE IV-EXECUTIVE DEPARTMENT,	
CHAPTER I-Mayor	32
IIAuditor	34
III—Treasurer	36
IV—Assessor	39
V—Tax Collector	39
VI—Coroner	41
VII—Recorder	41
ARTICLE V-LEGAL DEPARTMENT.	
CHAPTER I—Superior Court Judges	42
II—City Attorney	42
III—District Attorney	43
IV—Public Administrator	45
V—County Clerk	45
VI—Sheriff	46
VII_Justices' Court,	46
VIII—Police Court	47
IX—San Francisco Law Library	51
ARTICLE VI-DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS.	
CHAPTER I-Board of Public Works	51
II—Improvement of Streets	60
III—Opening of Streets	80
IV—Sewers and Drainage	88
V-Harbors and Wharves	89
ARTICLE VII-PUBLIC SCHOOLS AND LIBRARIES.	
CHAPTER I—Board of Education	80
II—Schools	90
III-Powers of the Board of Education	91
IV—Superintendent of Schools	94
V—School Tax Levy	96
VI—School Houses and Lots	97
VII-Public Library and Reading Rooms	98

ARTICLE	VIII-POLICE DEPARTMENT.	PAGE.
	CHAPTER I-Organization	100
	II—Police Commissioners	100
	IΠ-Powers of the Board	101
	IV-Chief of Police	102
	V-Subordinate Officers	104
	VI-Police Officers	105
	VII-Promotions, Suspensions and Dismissals	
	VIII—Unclaimed and Stolon Property	
	IX-Present Police Force	
\$ [ \$1	X-Police Relief and Pension Fund	107
ARTICLE	IX-FIBE DEPARTMENT.	
	CHAPTER I-Organization and Powers	111
	II—Dutice of Commissioners	112
- 22	III—The Chief Engineer	113
	IV—Fire Companies	114
	V—Fire Marshal	
	VI-Fire Wardens	
	VII—Firemen's Relief Fund	
	VIII—Salaries	
	IX-Department of Electricity	. 118
ARTICLE	X—Department of Public Health	. 119
ARTICLE	XI-DEPARTMENT OF ELECTIONS.	
	CHAPTER I-Board of Election Commissioners	. 121
	II—Municipal Elections	123
ARTICLE	XII-Acquisition of Public Utilities	. 124
ARTICLE	XIII—Civil Service	128
ARTICLE	XIV-PARK COMMISSIONERS	. 133
ARTICLE	XV—Bonds of Officials	. 137
ARTICLE	XVI-MISCELLANEOUS	. 139
SCHEDUI	.E	148

### CHARTER

Prepared and Proposed for the City and County of

#### SAN FRANCISCO

### BOARD OF FREEHOLDERS

Elected December 27, 1897, in pursuance of the provisions of Section 8, Article XI, of the Constitution of the State of California.

### ARTICLE I.

#### Boundaries, Rights and Liabilities.

SECTION 1. The municipal corporation known as the City and County of San Francisco shall remain and continue a body politic and corporate, in name and in fact, by the name of the City and County of San Francisco, and by that name shall have perpetual succession; may sue and defend in all courts and places and in all matters and proceedings; may have and use a common seal and alter the same at pleasure; may purchase, receive, hold and enjoy real and personal property; receive bequests, gifts and donations of all kinds of property, in fee simple, or in trust for charitable and other purposes, and do all acts necessary to carry out the purposes of such gifts, bequests and dona-tions, with power to manage, sell, lease or otherwise dispose of the same in accordance with the terms of the gift. bequest or trust.

SEC. 2. The boundaries of the City and County of San Francisco are hereby declared to be those set forth in Section Thirty-Nine Hundred and Fifty of the Political Code

of California.

SEC. 3. The City and County of San Francisco shall continue, under this Charter, to have, hold and enjoy all property, rights of property, rights of action of every nature

and description of the existing municipality and is hereby declared to be the successor of the same.

Sec. 4. Suits, actions and proceedings may be brought in the name of the City and County for the recovery of any property, money or thing belonging thereto, in law or equity, or dedicated to public use therein, or for the enforcement of any rights of, or contracts with, the City and County, whether made or arising or accruing before or after the adoption of this Charter. All existing suits, actions and proceedings in the courts or elsewhere, to which the City and County is a party, shall continue to be carried on by or against the City and County.

SEC. 5. No recourse shall be had against the City and County for damage or loss to person or property suffered or sustained by reason of the defective condition of any sidewalk, street, avenue, lane, alley, court or place, or by reason of the defective condition of any sewer, or by reason of any defective drainage, whether any of said defects originally existed, or whether they were occasioned by construction, excavation or embankment; nor shall there be any recourse against the City and County for want of repair of any side-walk, street, avenue, lane, alley, court or place, or by want of repair of any sewer; nor shall there be any recourse against the City and County for damage to person or property suffered or sustained by reason of accident on any sidewalk, street, avenue, lane, alley, court or place, or by falling from any embankment thereon or into any excavation therein; but in any such case the person or persons on whom the law may have imposed the obligation to repair such defect in the sidewalk, street or public highway, or in the sewer, and also the officer or officers through whose official negligence such defect remains unrepaired shall be jointly and severally liable to the party injured for the damage sustained.

### ARTICLE II.

### LEGISLATIVE DEPARTMENT.

### CHAPTER I.

#### The Board of Supervisors.

SECTION 1. The legislative power of the City and County of San Francisco shall be vested in a legislative body, which shall be designated the Board of Supervisors. Such body is also designated in this Charter, the Supervisors.

Sec. 2. The Board of Supervisors shall consist of eighteen members, all of whom shall hold office for two years and be elected from the City and County at large. Each one must be at the time of his election an elector of the City and County, and must have been such for at least five years next preceding his election. Each Supervisor shall receive an annual salary of twelve hundred dollars.

Every person who has served as Mayor of the City and County, so long as he remains a resident thereof, shall be entitled to a seat in the Board of Supervisors and to participate in its debates, but shall not be entitled to a vote nor to any compensation.

SEC. 3. A majority of all the members of the Board shall constitute a quorum, but a less number may adjourn from day to day and compel the attendance of absent members in such manner and under such penalties as the Board may prescribe.

SEC. 4 The Board shall:

 Appoint a clerk, sergeant-at-arms and, when authorized to do so by ordinance, such additional clerks and other assistants as may be deemed necessary.

Establish rules for its proceedings.

Keep a journal of its proceedings, and allow the same to be published. The ayes and noes shall on demand of any member be taken and entered therein.

Have authority to punish its members for disorderly

or contemptuous behavior in its presence.

SEC. 5. The Mayor shall be the presiding officer of the Board of Supervisors. In the absence of the Mayor the Board shall appoint a presiding officer pro tempore from its own members, who shall have the same right to vote as other members.

The Board shall meet on Monday of each SEC. 6. week, or if that day be a legal holiday, then on the next day. The Board shall not adjourn to any other place than to its regular place of meeting, except in case of great necessity or emergency. The meetings of the Board shall be

public.

SEC. 7. The clerk of the Board, when requested to do so, shall administer oaths and affirmations, without charge, in all matters pertaining to the affairs of his office, and shall perform such services as may be prescribed by the Board. He shall have the custody of the seal, and of all leases, grants and other documents, records and papers of the City and County. His signature shall be necessary to all leases, grants and conveyances of the City and County. SEC. 8. Every legislative act of the City and County

shall be by ordinance. The enacting clause of every ordinance shall be in these words: "Be it ordained by the People of the City and County of San Francisco as follows. No ordinance shall be passed except by bill, and no bill shall be so amended as to change its original purpose.

Sec. 9. No bill shall become an ordinance, nor resolution be adopted, unless finally passed by a majority of all the members of the Board and the vote be taken by ayes and noes and the names of the members voting for and against the same be entered in the Journal.

SEC. 10. No ordinance shall be revised, re-enacted or amended by reference to its title; but the ordinance to be revised or re-enacted, or the section thereof amended, shall

be re-enacted at length as revised and amended.

Sec. 11. An ordinance shall embrace but one subject, which subject shall be expressed in its title. If any subject be embraced in an ordinance and not expressed in its title, such ordinance shall be void only as to so much thereof as is not expressed in its title.

SEC. 12. When a bill is put upon its final passage in the